Portsmouth Infrastructure Support Services 
Request for Proposal 89303320REM000072
Questions and Answers
	No.
	Section 
	Page 
of RFP
	Comment
	Type*
	Response

	1
	Cover Letter
	N/A
	The RFP Cover Letter indicates “Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour will be held by DOE at a later determined date. Registration information and instructions regarding the Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour will be posted to the EMCBC acquisition web site.

Question:
1. In support of identification of participants and travel planning, would the Government please announce the date(s), start time and expected completion time? 

	N
	The Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour tab has been updated with details and registration information relating to the pre-proposal conference and virtual site tour for the Portsmouth Infrastructure Support Services procurement. 

	2
	Cover Letter
	N/A
	We request an extension for the due date of this proposal of by an additional 30 days. A Draft RFP was not provided, and there has been a delay in posting numerous critical documents to the documents library. These documents are voluminous and are necessary to prepare this proposal and the lack of accessibility and adequate time for review provides the incumbent contractor with an unfair competitive advantage and limits competition.

	N
	The scope is consistent with the Request for Information (RFI) issued on February 19, 2019, to solicit input via capability statements from interested parties with the specialized capabilities necessary to meet all or part of the major elements of scope for the upcoming competitive procurement(s) for the PPPO Infrastructure Support Services (PPPO ISS). 

Amendment 3 has extended the due date for proposals to 1600 (04:00pm) EST on Thursday, December 10, 2020.


	3
	Cover Letter
	N/A
	We a request an extension to the question deadline to support continued evaluation of the breadth and depth of the solicitation and to allow time for offerors to carefully review documents and information expected to be included in the Proposal Conference/Site Tour and Documents Library on the EMCBC PORTS ISS procurement web site.
Question
1.  Would the Government please extend the due date to one week after the Proposal Conference/Site Tour or one week after the Documents Library is fully populated, which ever is later?

	T
	[bookmark: _GoBack]The Documents Library was fully populated on October 20, 2020. The Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour was conducted on October 28, 2020. Amendment 1 extended the due date for questions to November 4, 2020.

	4
	Document Library
	N/A
	In the Document Library on the procurement website, the link to the document 3.5b, Integrated Groundwater Monitoring Plan (DOE PPPO 03-0032&D10) is broken. 

	N
	The link in the Documents Library of the Portsmouth ISS website has been corrected.


	5
	Documents Library
	N/A
	The 2014 RFP for this contract there was file with 85 pages of  Historical Maintenance by the contractor, Will the Government provide a similar file for the past 3 years of workload data?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	6
	EMCBC Website - Documents Library
	N/A
	When will documents be posted to the Documents Library?
	T
	Documents have been posted and additional documents that have been requested and are considered relevant will be posted as soon as possible at DOE’s discretion.


	7
	EMCBC Website - Documents Library
	N/A
	In the 2014 RFP the Government posted numerous reference documents to the Document Library, including but not limited to:
001-Janitor Floor Plans II
002-Historical Direct Labor Rates for Non-Union Personnel
003-Ports FTE List
006-PORTS Historical Maintenance as Captured by the ISS Contractor
007-Site Seniority List
008-Stste of Ohio Annual Elevator Safety Test Form
009-Wastren-EnergX Mission Support, LLC Collective Bargaining Agreement
010-X-215B 62-E
011-X-220-A-6001-E
012-X-220-A-6002-E
SITEWIDE INTERFACE PROGRAM PORTSMOUTH RESERVATION, PIKETON. OHIO
Question
1. Will the Government provide updated versions of the documents previously included as RFP reference documents in the Document Library? 

	T
	DOE has reviewed this list. DOE has provided all pertinent and relevant documents either as attachments in the RFP or as additional information in the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website.

	8
	General
	N/A
	The final RFP was released on October 13, 2020 without a prior draft RFP. The Document Library has not yet been adequately populated with vital documents that are required to develop a firm fixed price cost proposal. The responses to initial questions submitted on October 20 have not been provided. The pre-proposal conference was held on October 28 and the website links do not allow access to the conference slides, site tour narrative and the attendee.

Due to the combination of all the above factors mentioned above, we respectively request a 30-day extension. 
	N
	The scope is consistent with the Request for Information (RFI) issued on February 19, 2019, to solicit input via capability statements from interested parties with the specialized capabilities necessary to meet all or part of the major elements of scope for the upcoming competitive procurement(s) for the PPPO Infrastructure Support Services (PPPO ISS). 

The documents library, pre-proposal conference, and other website links were populated as determined by DOE. Additional documents may be added based on questions received. Questions were not due until 11/5, and responses are provided concurrently with all questions received.

Amendment 3 has extended the due date for proposals to 1600 (04:00pm) EST on Thursday, December 10, 2020.


	9
	General
	N/A
	The Port ISS EMCBC website “Final RFP” tab states “Questions regarding this solicitation must be submitted to PORT_ISS@emcbc.doe.gov no later than October 20, 2020 using the MS Excel format hereby provided for submission.” However, on that same tab, there is a “Final RFP Question Template” link that opens a PDF document. We have converted the PDF document to Word for this question submission. If an Excel submission is requested, please provide the Excel format for the offeror to resubmit questions. 

	N
	This has been updated to the amended due date of November 4, 2020. The questions received by the due date will be responded to.

An Excel format is not requested. The PDF document is provided as an example of how offerors should format questions related to the RFP.

	10
	General
	 N/A
	Please provide any of the following documents related to the management of IT/Cyber at Portsmouth:  IT governance model/charter; enterprise architecture for Portsmouth site; Cyber related documents such as:  Cyber Risk framework; Cyber capability maturity; vulnerability reports, cyber audits;  Portsmouth specific IT/Cyber strategic plans; Any FISMA/FITARA scorecard related documents; status of current and planned IT/Cyber upgrades, projects, or initiatives.

	T
	DOE has provided all pertinent and relevant documents either as attachments in the RFP or as additional information in the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. As provided in the Requesting Controlled Unclassified Information tab of the Portsmouth ISS website, DOE will provide additional reference material (which is OUO either via disk or encrypted email distribution).

	11
	General
	N/A
	The last solicitation there was Material Purchase Summary report, Will this be provided this time?
	T
	Since the current contract has been a firm-fixed price contract for 5 years, this information is not tracked or provided to DOE. The Offeror must include an appropriate amount of materials within their firm-fixed price to perform the PWS requirements.


	12
	General
	N/A
	The last solicitation there was Helpdesk Work Orders report, Will this be provided this time?

	T
	The Help Desk volume for service tickets is approximately 3,500 per month.

	13
	General
	N/A
	The last solicitation there was Maintenance Costs for Incumbent Assigned Facilities report, Will this be provided this time?
	T
	Since this contract has been a firm-fixed price contract for 5 years, this information is not tracked or provided to DOE. The Offeror must include an appropriate amount of materials within their firm-fixed price to perform the PWS requirements.


	14
	Requesting Controlled Unclassified Information
	N/A
	EMCBC issued the Paducah Infrastructure Support Services RFP with a requirement to fill out a Non-Disclosure Agreement for controlled but unclassified information.
Question:
1. Will an NDA be required to access controlled but unclassified information for the Portsmouth Infrastructure Support Services Solicitation?  If so, would the Government please release instructions?

	N
	The Requesting Controlled Unclassified Information tab has been updated with information on obtaining access to documents from the Documents Library considered to be Controlled Unclassified. 

	15
	Standard Form 33, Block 9
	1
	Offers are due 1600 EST on Tuesday December 1, 2020.  This due date effectively means that the proposal shipment must occur before or during the Thanksgiving weekend.
Question:
1. Would the Government please grant a nine day extension to the proposal due date to allow offerors’ employees and families to spend the holiday together?

	N
	Amendment 3 has extended the due date for proposals to 1600 (04:00pm) EST on Thursday, December 10, 2020.

	16
	B.2 CLIN Structure
	17
	B.2 CLIN Structure, pg. 17 states in part “The 60-day transition period is covered by CLIN 0001.” In addition, C.3.1 Contract Transition states in part “the Contractor shall begin transition from the incumbent contractor for a period of approximately 60 calendar days.” However, Table B.3 (1) on pg. 18 indicates that CLIN 0001 has a quantity of one (1) month. 
Question:
1. Would the Government please clarify this discrepancy?

	T
	The total cost proposed as FFP for transition will be paid upon completion of transition. There is no incremental payment for transition. The transition period is 60 days. The Unit of Measure has been changed to Lump Sum in Amendment 3.

	17
	B.3 (b) Contract Pricing
	18
	This section states that rates for EEOICPA and Cyber/Computing/IT hours to be inclusive of any overtime work the Contractor chooses to allow personnel to work. What is the historical amount of overtime for these positions?  
	N
	This information is not tracked by DOE.  Overtime is strictly dependent on the Offeror’s organization and management of this scope.    

For EEOICPA the average number of requests and hours billed per month for the past twelve months is:

DOL Employment Verification:  10 requests/62 hours
NIOSH Requests:  4 requests/6 hours
NIOSH Supplement Data:  1 request/1 hour
DOL-DAR  Requests:  10 requests/100 hours


	18
	B.3 Contract Pricing
	18
	Table B.3(1).  CLIN 0001 Transition has a quantity of 1 and a unit of measure as months. Transition is listed as NTE 60 days. The L-8 cost spreadsheet has the quantity of 1 and unit of measure as LS.  Please clarify.
	N
	The total cost proposed as FFP for transition will be paid upon completion of transition. There is no incremental payment for transition. The Unit of Measurement will be changed to Lump Sum in an amendment.


	19
	B.3.(b) Contract Pricing
	18
	The Government has provided estimated DPLH for various labor categories. What is the DPLH per FTE?

	N
	1800 hours per year should be used for estimating this contract.

	20
	Section B
	24
	The RFP requires  “The Cyber Security, Computing, and Information Technology personnel fixed hourly rates are fully burdened, and include all indirect costs and profit for the work covered under Section C.3.12, except for the IT Director. This position is a management position and should be included as part of the firm-fixed price associated with Section C.2.1, Administration”
Question
1. Is the IT Director a mandatory position that must be bid by all offerors?

	N
	No – this position is not required by DOE.

	21
	B.3(c) 
	25
	Section B.3 "Cost Reimbursement (No Fee) CLINs" states that no indirects costs are allowable for CLINs 0401 and 0402. This seems to be in conflict with the included FAR 52.216-11 which states "The Government shall not pay the Contractor a fee for performing this contract". As Fee is not a cost, but indirects are a cost, can the Government explain if these are Cost Reimbursement CLINs in accordance with FAR 52.216-11 and all costs except fee are allowable?

	N
	This is not a cost reimbursable contract. Items identified in CLINs 0401 and 0402 are pass-through costs allowed to be paid as direct costs by the government. Any resources necessary to manage this scope is to be included in the firm fixed price for operations under CLINs 0101 and 0102.

	22
	B.3(c)
	25
	Are the estimated cost for the Cost reimbursement CLINs 0401 and 0402 to be submitted as shown in the RFP or should indirect cost be added to them?
	N
	The costs are those provided by DOE in the RFP.  Items identified in CLINs 0401 and 0402 are pass-through costs allowed to be paid as direct costs by the government. Any resources necessary to manage this scope is to be included in the firm fixed price for operations under CLINs 0101 and 0102.


	23
	Section C
	32
	Final RFP, Section C – a review of this document and the various attachments in the solicitation does not yield any references to boilers used for water heating, process steam or steam heating.

Question:
1. Is there a requirement at PORTS to maintain/repair/inspect boilers?

	T
	There are no boilers that ISS is responsible to maintain, repair, or inspect.

	24
	C.2.2.3
	38
	Will the D&D contractor provide a Certified Health Physicist to interpret, recommend, and approve data for Radiological Survey Reports and UE5s?

	T
	Yes.

	25
	Section C para. C.3.4.2.4 and Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1
	40 

And 

231, 14 of 14
	Section C Description/Specifications para. C.3.4.2.4 calls out SOMAX as the CMMS to be used by the Contractor.   

Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1 does not list SOMAX as a Core Software, Cost Reimbursable Software, or an Optional Software for Support of Fixed-Price Scope.  
Questions
1. Is SOMAX a Cost Reimbursable Software? 
2. Is SOMAX provided as Government Furnished?. 

	T
	The section states:
“The Contractor shall fully utilize the computer software program SOMAX (Somax G3 3.15) or approved equivalent as their CMMS.”

Use of a CMMS system is required for completion of the ISS PWS scope and the cost is the responsibility of the ISS Contractor.  

No - It is not cost reimbursable software and is not provided by DOE. 

The Contractor may use an equivalent approved software program for its CMMS and the number of licenses and features is determined by the contractor. The contractor is required to meet the PWS requirements, including providing two licenses for DOE’s use as identified in the PWS.


	26
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for engineering management or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	27
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for waste management engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	28
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload facility engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	29
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the, system engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	30
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for structural engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	31
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for project engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	32
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for computer engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price.  The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.

IT services are fixed labor rate as identified in Section L-8.


	33
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for fire protection engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	34
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for mechanical engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	35
	C Para 2.3
	43
	Will the Government provide the workload for civil engineering or if subcontracted out, the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?.
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	36
	C Para 2.3
	43
	How many drawing are updated annually?  If subcontracted out what is the annual dollar amount over the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	37
	C Para 2.4
	43
	How many projects are handled on average on yearly basis for the past 3 years?
	T
	The scope of the contract is adequately explained in Section C and the corresponding attachments.


	38
	C.2.2.11
	43
	Please provide a copy of the current Pollution Prevention Plan
	T
	The Documents Library tab on the Portsmouth ISS website has been updated with document, C.2.2.11 - Pollution Prevention Plan.


	39
	C.2.5.2
	46
	Does Attachment J-3, Accountable Property List, include any ISS contractor tools and supplies necessary to effectively perform scope of work for maintenance and custodial? 

	T
	Any tools and supplies not included on Attachment J-3 or Attachment J-8.C.2.5.2 required to perform the scope of the PWS is the responsibility of the Offeror.

	40
	C Para 2.6
	47
	How many items are exported on an annual or monthly basis?

	T
	The number of exported items is minimal; however, the ISS Contractor will be responsible to provide the support, if necessary.


	41
	C Para 2.6
	47
	How many High Risk Property Items are there that must be accounted for?

	T
	Currently the incumbent does not possess any High Risk personal property (nor is any included as GFE) as defined in DOE Guidance 580.1-1A, Personal Property.


	42
	C para 2.6
	48
	Will the Government provide the workload for each Bullet Item on Page 48?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	43
	C Para 2.7
	48
	How long does the Annual DOE Science Alliance run?  What has been the historical support provide by labor categories and hours?

	T
	The support by labor hours and categories is not available. The Science Alliance runs for approximately 3 days (7 hours per day). 

	44
	C Para 2.7
	49
	How many other DOE sponsored events are there annually? What is required for support?  How long do they go on for?

	T
	The number of sponsored events vary. The ISS Contractor would support any events that are relevant to the services performed under the PWS.

	45
	C.3.1 Table B.3(1)
	49
	C.3.1 describes an approximate transition of 60 days which conflicts with Table B.3(1) that indicates one month. Please clarify the anticipated transition time.

	T
	The total cost proposed as FFP for transition will be paid upon completion of transition. There is no incremental payment for transition. The transition period is 60 days.  Table B.3(1) shows the payment quantities. The unit of measure has been changed to Lump Sum in Amendment 3.


	46
	C.3.2
	50
	When was the last Safeguards and Security periodic survey conducted? Will the Government share this document to ensure that all Offerors have access to the same information?

	T
	DOE will not share this document as the report contains detailed information regarding Site contractor processes, performance ratings and/or other contractor specific information not relevant to the Offeror’s proposed approach.

	47
	C.3.2
	51
	Is Centrus excluded as they have their own S&S Program?

	T
	This current RFP and scope of work does not provide for the Centrus support. Centrus is excluded as they have their own S&S program. However, the ISS contractor does provide minimal support functions, which includes HSPD-12 badging, and lock and key.  


	48
	C.3.2.1.1 Protection Program Management and Administration
	52
	Protection Program Management and Administration states:  “annual S&S Training Plan (Deliverable 41), including accurate and complete employee training records that encompass applicable S&S program elements performed by Contractor employees working in these assignments at the Portsmouth Site. The plan must project training derived from a valid needs analysis for the forthcoming year, and establish methods to ensure personnel are trained to a level of proficiency and competence that ensures they are qualified to perform assigned S&S tasks and/or responsibilities.”

Question: This is a firm fixed price contract, how do we determine past incumbent professional development and training (PD&T) without this information to cost future PD&T requirements? Or can the government provide an average annual PD&T for the incumbent ISS contractor?  

	T
	Past training costs cannot predict potential future training costs nor can DOE provide, or speculate as to future costs as this is solely dependent on the individual and his or her relevant training and background congruent to any particular position. Every individual hire/employee would have to be analyzed to determine training gaps.  

This information is not tracked by DOE. Training and travel costs are strictly dependent on the Offeror’s organization and management of this scope.

	49
	C.3.2.1.2 Safeguards and Security Planning and Procedures
	53
	Safeguards and Security Planning and Procedures states:  “The annual active shooter/workplace violence training process will also be included in the SSP.”

Question: Is this training for all PORTS employees does the ISS contractor have to develop and deliver the training?

	T
	Yes. This training is not to be confused with Protective Force responsibilities. This training is required for all PORTS employees. The ISS contractor is responsible for the development, tracking, maintenance and dissemination of said training.  

	50
	C.3.2.3.1.6
	57
	Please clarify ISS responsibility and Paducah ISS responsibility.

	T
	The Portsmouth ISS Contractor will operate and maintain the current system and AACS facilities assigned to them until the Paducah ISS Contractor implements a multi-site AACS system managed centrally. Once the multi-site system is implemented, the Portsmouth ISS Contractor will coordinate with the Paducah ISS Contractor to ensure the AACSs are functioning. If there are any mechanical issues, the Portsmouth ISS Contractor will perform any repairs during the period of performance of the PWS.


	51
	C.3.2 
	60
	The Contractor shall safeguard against the loss, theft, diversion, unauthorized access, misuse, or sabotage of radiological and chemical assets in accordance with DOE O 470.3, Design Basis Threat.  
Question: How many Safeguards and Security incumbent staff currently have Q clearances?

	T
	In general, all the S&S staff have Q clearances (unless there is turnover that requires new personnel to apply and obtain a clearance that may be in process).

	52
	C.3.2.4.4
	60
	This section identifies that the “Classification shall provide classification support to other site contractors,” but then states that “the Contractor does not perform classification reviews on documents for other site contractors. Other site contractors are required to perform the reviews in accordance to the program requirements provided by the Contractor.” This is contradictory and confusing.  Please clarify.

	T
	The ISS contractor is expected to develop and maintain a classification program for the PORTS Site (Program Plan, classification awareness, DC training, etc.). The intent is to ensure the ISS contractor does not assume all responsibility for Site classification reviews solely, rather to ensure classification reviews and support are provided to DC’s in the field.

	53
	C.3.2.4.2 Technical Surveillance Countermeasures (TSCM) 
	63
	“The Contractor shall support the Federal TSCM Program, as requested by the ODFSA, TSCM Operations Manager or designated alternate in accordance with DOE O 470.6 Technical Security Program." 

Is the TSCM Manager a Federal employee or an ISS contract employee?  

	T
	The TSCM is an ISS Contractor employee who is designated as the TSCM point of contact. The incumbent has a designated TSCM point of contact.

	54
	C.3.2.4.2 Technical Surveillance Countermeasures (TSCM) 
	63
	"....The Contractor shall provide and maintain the appropriate number of trained TSCM Officer(s) to support the Federal PPPO TSCM program. The Contractor shall coordinate the TSCM Program with other site contractors, as needed.” 

Currently, how many trained TSCM Officer(s) does the incumbent ISS contractor have or the average (annual) requests for TSCM Officer support?

	T
	The TSCM is an ISS Contractor employee who is designated as the TSCM point of contact. The incumbent has a designated TSCM point of contact.

	55
	C.3.2.5
	63
	Lines 4 and 5 identify:
“Support of clearance investigators holding interviews at the Badge Office (C-801) facility.”
“Provide services at the Badge Office (X-801) facility Monday through Friday 6:00 am to 4:00 pm.”
These building numbers are in error. Is there any flexibility in the hours the badge office is to be staffed (holidays, etc)? 

	T
	The Facility Number has been corrected in Amendment 3. See changes to Section C.

Any changes related to office hours for holidays or other non-work days will be coordinated with DOE as necessary throughout the period of performance. Holiday schedules will need to be coordinated due to differing holiday schedules of DOE and contractors. 

	56
	C.3.2.4.5 Classified Matter Protection & Control (CMPC) 
	65
	Classified Matter Protection & Control (CMPC) states:  “The contractor shall provide and maintain the appropriate number of trained COMSEC Custodian(s) to support the Federal PPPO COMSEC program. The Contractor shall coordinate COMSEC with other site contractors, as needed.”

Question: Currently, how many trained COMSEC Custodian(s) does the incumbent ISS contractor have or the average (annual) request for COMSEC Custodian support?

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS.

	57
	C.3.3.1.5 Site Telephone Service
	65
	Site Telephone System. This section required maintenance of the PBX system in accordance with original manufacturers technical manuals and specifications.  Please provide this information.  

Please specify what services are still PBX and what services use VIOP

This section also states that “As VOIP replaces the PBX-associated phones, the Contractor will maintain those phones and infrastructure as well.”  Is there a planned schedule for the transition from PBX to VIOP, and if so please provide. 

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for both the NEC PBX and CUCM (VOIP). The plan is to transition 100% to VOIP over the course of the next 5 year contract.

	58
	C Para 3.3.2.1 and J-8.C.3.3.1
	66
	How many printers, scanners and copiers are required to support Portsmouth ISS requirements?

	T
	It is the responsibility of the ISS contractor to determine the number of printers, scanners, and copiers they need to perform the scope of the PWS.

	59
	C Para 3.3.2.1.2
	67
	What has been the historical usage of toner cartridges and paper over the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	60
	C Para 3.3.2.1.2
	67
	What has been the historical workload for document reproduction over the past 3 years broken out by labor, supplies and equipment?

	T
	Detailed cost information is not available as this service was provided as firm fixed price. Offerors should assume 1 FTE is needed to support this effort.

	61
	C Para 3.4.1.2
	68
	Will the government provide the historical workload for disposition of Personal property by classified equipment, high risk property, nuclear related, and ADPE items for the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	62
	C.3.4.1.1.5

J-4
	68

231
	Sections C.3.4.1.1.5 and J-4 (deliverable 71) conflict on Site Sustainability Plan consolidating contractor responsibility. Which contractor, D&D or ISS, is responsible for consolidating and submitting for all site contractors? 

	T
	The ISS Contractor shall provide data needed by the D&D contractor (the consolidating contractor) per DOE O 436.1, Departmental Sustainability. The Attachment J-4 Deliverable 71 has been clarified in Amendment 3.

	63
	C.3.4.1.2
	68
	Does ISS Contractor have responsibility for all SODI disposition? 

	T
	The D&D Contractor has responsibility for all SODI disposition.

	64
	C.3.4.1.3
	68
	C.3.4.1.3 “Fleet Management Services” states “D&D contractor will be responsible for comprehensive fleet management and reporting.  Does this mean that the vehicles identified on attachment J-8.C.3.4.1.3 are to be provided to the ISS contractor by the D&D contractor and the GSA monthly bill be paid as part of the D&D contract or will the ISS contractor be responsible for the monthly lease payment to GSA?

	T
	The ISS contractor makes the payment for the monthly GSA invoice, which is cost reimbursable. The ISS contractor’s staff processes these payments as part of the firm-fixed price operations scope under CLIN 0101/0102. The payment amount to GSA is cost reimbursable.

	65
	C.3.4.1.3
	69
	C.3.4.1.3 states contractor may utilize GSA certified vendor services from D&D contractor facility, which would not be available if Fleet Management Services is managed by the ISS contractor. Please clarify.

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible to maintain any GSA vehicles assigned to them. An option for this maintenance service is to have the D&D contractor perform the services through a work authorization and pay them since they manage the majority of the site GSA fleet. Otherwise, the ISS Contractor must obtain other GSA certified vendors to maintain these vehicles.

	66
	C Para 3.4.2.2.2
	70
	What is the historical number of Level II Maintenance Work over the past 3 years?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	67
	C.3.4.3.2 Level I Maintenance of Facilities
	70
	Please provide a current version of the Preventative Maintenance Plan and a historical workload for Facilities Level I maintenance activities.

	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library under the Portsmouth ISS website.

The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	68
	C Para 3.4.2.3.1
	71
	What is the historical number of Level II Maintenance Work over the past 3 years for Emergencies, Priority 1?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	69
	C Para 3.4.2.3.2
	71
	What is the historical number of Level II Maintenance Work over the past 3 years for Urgent, Priority 2?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	70
	C Para 3.4.2.3.3
	71
	What is the historical number of Level II Maintenance Work over the past 3 years for Routine, Priority 3?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	71
	C Para 3.4.2.4
	71
	Is SOMAX (Somax G3 3.15) government provided or contractor provided?
	T
	DOE owns the current CMMS; however, the ISS contractor is responsible for payment of support and licenses (it is not identified as cost reimbursable) – any new system the contractor chooses is fully the responsibility of the ISS Contractor.


	72
	C Para 3.4.2.4
	71
	Annually how many maintenance/services, service orders, individual job orders, standing job orders, preventative maintenance inputs are done annually or monthly into the CMMS?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	73
	PWS C.3.4.2.4
	71
	C.3.4.2.4 Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS), pg. 71 states in part “The Contractor shall fully utilize the computer software program SOMAX (Somax G3 3.15) or approved equivalent as their CMMS.” 

Questions: 
1. Is the specified version of SOMAX currently in use by the incumbent ISS contractor? 
2. If so, does the incumbent own the CMMS? 
3. Does SOMAX currently reside on a server on-site or is it cloud based? 
4. If the incumbent is not willing to sell the system to the incoming contractor, can the offeror assume that, at a minimum, DOE will provide the offeror with a copy of the PORTS SOMAX database for migration to a newly purchased instance of SOMAX during transition?

	T
	1. Yes – current version is 3.15.

2. DOE owns the current CMMS; however, the ISS contractor is responsible for payment of support and licenses (it is not identified as cost reimbursable) – any new system the contractor chooses is fully the responsibility of the ISS Contractor).

3. Server on-site.

4. DOE will provide access to the current CMMS during transition for the ISS Contractor to obtain programming and data for establishing its CMMS system.

	74
	PWS C.3.4.2.4
	71
	C.3.4.2.4 Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS), pg. 71 states in part “The Contactor shall provide full access to the CMMS to DOE to include any licensing requirements for two individuals.”  There are costs difference in licensing depending on access rights. 
Question:
1. Does “full access” mean read only rights to the contents of the database, or full data manipulation rights? 

	T
	Read only with ability to print reports and download data.

	75
	C Para 3.4.2.4.1
	72
	Annually how many inputs are made for scheduled maintenance into the CMMS?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	76
	PWS C.3.4.2.4.2
	72
	C.3.4.2.4.2 Maintenance Request Reception and Processing requires that the contractor track, among other things, “Scheduled/anticipated material cost” as well as “Scheduled/anticipated work hour cost.” 

However, under C.3.4.2.4.3 Completed Maintenance the contractor is required to include, as part of activity close-out, “Brief description of material and parts used, including quantities” as well as “Hours of labor (by craft) expended.” 

In C.3.4.2.4.3 the requirements do not include reporting of actual labor and material costs. 

Question:
1. It is our experience that the customer is usually highly interested in exact costs for labor and materials. Please clarify the DOE’s expectations to track and report actual labor and material costs. 

	T
	The specific costs related to firm-fixed price work is not mandatory. For tracking purposes, DOE requires what is included in C.3.4.2.4.2 and C.3.4.2.4.3.

	77
	Section C.3.4.2.1 General
	72
	Question:
1.  Would the Government please release the history of Level I and II maintenance data for the last two fiscal years (FY2018 and FY2019)?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	78
	C Para 3.4.2.6
	73
	What is the historical workload for configuration management for the past 3 years?
	T
	Configuration management activities are not tracked specifically as they are only needed when facility modifications occur – which is not generally required for routine maintenance. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	79
	C Para 3.4.2.7
	73
	Will the Government provide the past 3 years monthly maintenance reports (Deliverable 76)?

	T
	Yes – these will be added to the Documents Library of the Portsmouth ISS website.

	80
	C Para 3.4.3.1
	74
	What has been the historical workload for repairs and replacement for furnishing such as, but not limited to: desks, chairs, refrigerators , microwaves, tables over the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	81
	C Para 3.4.3.2
	75
	Will the government provide a detailed historical list of Level I Maintenance for the past 3 years by Craft or Shop, Number of Orders, Hours Spent and Material costs for Preventative Maintenance and one for Scheduled Maintenance?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	82
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide the PM Program since the Mowing, Space Cleaning, Snow and Ice, Records Disposition Plans and other were provided?

	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website.  

	83
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	States in Part: “For each facility, the Contractor shall address all installed equipment (e.g., HVAC, electrical equipment, fixtures, etc.) and building systems (e.g., roofing systems; structural components; interior walls, ceilings, and trim; interior and exterior doors; windows and screens; stairs and stairwells; cabinets and countertops; interior accessories; flooring and floor covering; exterior walls; exterior trim gutters and downspouts ; exterior concrete and masonry structures; exterior accessories; overhead or rolling doors; signage; refrigeration equipment; plumbing systems; electrical material and equipment; elevators; etc.)” but J-8.C.3.4.3.a &b and J-8.C.3.2.3 do not cover all the items that are required to be maintained.  Will the Government provide a comprehensive list of item by item by building to build and maintain a proper PM Program for DOE?

	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.

	84
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of electrical equipment by item, make, model, serial number and quantity that are part of the PM Program?

	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	85
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of plumbing item that are part of the PM Program by building?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	86
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of gutters and downspouts that are part of the PM Program to include liner feet of gutters and number of downspouts?

	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	87
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of types of interior and exterior doors that are part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	88
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of roofing systems that are part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	89
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of stairs and stairwells that are part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	90
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Will the government provide a complete list of windows and screens that are part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	91
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Why are interior walls, ceilings, and trim included as part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	92
	C Para 3.4.3.2.1
	75
	Why are exterior concrete and masonry structures; exterior accessories included as part of the PM Program?
	T
	The Preventative Maintenance Plan has been added to the Documents Library on the Portsmouth ISS website. It is the ISS Contractors responsibility to develop a Preventative Maintenance Plan to meet the requirements of the PWS.


	93
	C Para 3.4.3.2.2
	75
	How many filters and sizes are required for each building?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	94
	C Para 3.4.3.2.2
	75
	How many belts and sizes are required for each building?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	95
	C.3.4.3.2
	75
	Please provide details on HVAC systems, overhead and rolling doors, elevators by facility location, 

	T
	HVAC Systems:
X-108T – Through wall AC/Heat Unit
X-112 – 2-30T chillers w/ 3 air handling units and 2 low pressure electric boilers
X-152J – 13 coiling coils and fans
X-152J1 – 30 ton chiller
X-152J2 – 30 ton chiller
X-533 T2, T3, & T4 – split system each trailer
X-540 – 2 Liebert AC units, 1 – through wall unit, and Steam heat provided by others
X-633 T1 & T3 split system each trailer, & T2 – 2 package units
X-700 West – 7 – RHW cabinet heating units; 8 through the wall units; 2 – 5T heat pump systems; RHW building heat provided by others
X-735A – 6 electric heating units; 2 through the wall units
X-744Y T1, T2, T3, T4, T5, T6 – split system each trailer; T8, & T9 – 2 each package units
X-751 – 2 HV units; 3 through the wall units, 12.5 T package system with electric heat,  and 1 low pressure electric boiler
X-751 AT1, AT2, AT3, & AT4 – 2 each package units each trailer
X-760-T1 & T2 – split system each trailer
XT-801- 8 package units w/ electric heat strips, RHW perimeter heating provided by low pressure electric boiler
X-1000 – 2-portable AC units, 2- water cooled package units; 6 cabinet heaters; RHW perimeter heating (provided by others); 1 Liebert split unit; 1 Sanyo split unit; 1 -175 to 450T chiller unit; 5 air handling units
X-1000T1 – 2 package units
X-1020 – 6 electric wall heating units; 2 package air handling units w/ electric heat; 1 make-up air unit
X-3000 -30 T chiller; 3 air handling units; RHW 9provided by others)heating w/reheat coils

Rolling/Overhead Doors
X-1000 – Panel Dock Door
X-700 – 4 Roll-up Doors
X-735A- 2 Roll-up Doors
X-751 – 21 Roll-up Doors

Elevator 
X-1000 – direct hydraulic passenger Otis elevator


	96
	C Para 3.4.3.2.3
	76
	States in part: “This work includes the maintenance, repair, and installation of all components, devices , equipment and associated systems, including, compressors, blowers, motors, drive assemblies, fans, service valves, dampers, condensers, cooling coils, piping, pumps, purge units, control systems and wiring, duct work, burner assemblies, combustion chambers, thermostats and temperature controls, registers, condensate and drip pans and drains, grills, evaporators, air filters, heat/air conditioning units, and all other items of equipment essential to the proper operation of equipment and systems in accordance with the manufacturer's manuals.” .)” but J-8.C.3.4.3.a &b and J-8.C.3.2.3 do not provide sizes, dimensions or total number of items that must be maintained.  Will the Government provide a n updated listing with sizes, serial numbers, part numbers, manufactures to bidders can property plan for a PM program?

	T
	This detail is not available. All available information has been provided as Attachments to the RFP or in the documents library. The virtual tour provided visual and narrative information regarding the general age and construction type of the facilities.

	97
	C Para 3.4.3.2.4
	76
	Will the government provide the sizes, Make, Model, serial number and if manual or electric for each of the Overhead and Roll up doors?

	T
	Rolling/Overhead Doors
X-1000 – Panel Dock Door
X-700 – 4 Roll-up Doors
X-735A- 2 Roll-up Doors
X-751 – 21 Roll-up Doors


	98
	C Para 3.4.3.2.5
	76
	Will the Government provide a complete list by building of elevators by manufacture, electric or hydraulic, passenger or freight?

	T
	Elevator 
X-1000 – direct hydraulic passenger Otis elevator

	99
	C Para 3.4.3.2.6
	76
	Will the Government provide a complete list by building of reach-in type residential, walk-in commercial refrigerators, and electric water coolers?

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror will determine the amount of refrigerator or type of water should be provided to it’s workforce.

	100
	C Para 3.4.3.2.7
	76
	Historically by building if possible, how many lighting fixture have been re-lamped by size on yearly basis?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	101
	C Para 3.4.3.2.8
	76
	Historically, how many signs have been replaced?  Repaired?  What are the total number of signs the contractor is responsible for on this contract?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	102
	C Para 3.4.3.2.9
	76
	Will the government provide a list and location of each gate and wire cage, liner feet of fencing to be maintained and historical repairs for the past 3 years?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	103
	C Para 3.4.3.2.9
	76
	What is the length of boundary fence (X-208A) that must be kept clear on both sides?  What has been the historical repairs for this fence over past 3 years?

	T
	Section J - Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.9 Fences and Wire Cages Listing-Description and Section J - Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.10 Fencing Figures provides the available information regarding the fences in the PWS.

	104
	C.3.4.3.2.5
	76
	C.3.4.3.2.5 Elevators. The Department of Labor Elevator Inspection Section oversees all elevators in the State of Ohio. Annual and 5-Year Electric Elevator Safety Tests (load and no load) and Hydraulic Elevator safety tests are required to be performed as outlined in ASME A17.2, A17.1 (part 8) and Ohio Revised Code Section 4105. 

Questions:
1. Please confirm that such tests on elevators are currently being performed at PORTS and by whom. 
2. If performed by state personnel, and assuming state elevator inspectors / safety test conductors require special escort when performing such tasks, has this historically posed any interruptions in service?  
3. Are there any special procedures to follow when scheduling such tasks?

	T
	There is one elevator that the ISS Contractor is responsible for in the X-1000 building.  

1. The incumbent performs a semi -annual PM, and subcontracts a vendor perform the 1year no load and 5year static load test.

2. Yes – only during testing process.

3. Yes – Work Control and Procurement Procedures.

	105
	C. Para 3.4.3.3
	77
	Will the government provide a detailed historical list of Level II Service Orders for the past 3 years by Craft or Shop, Number of Orders, Hours Spent and Material costs?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	106
	C.3.4.3.3 Level II Maintenance for Facilities
	77
	Please provide historical workloads and copies of service orders for Level II Maintenance for Facilities

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	107
	C Para 3.4.4.1
	78
	What has been the historical workload for overgrowth of trees, vines and bushes along the roadways over the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE as is it part of the mowing services, when necessary to maintain the various vegetation levels. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	108
	C Para 3.4.4.1
	78
	How much guardrail have been replace or repaired yearly over the past 3 years?
	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	109
	C Para 3.4.4.1
	78
	How many signs have been repaired or replaced yearly over the past 3 years?
	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	110
	C Para 3.4.4.1
	78
	What has been the historical workload for overgrowth of trees, vines and bushes along the roadways over the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price.  The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	111
	C Para 3.4.4.1
	78
	How much guardrail have been replace or repaired yearly over the past 3 years?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	112
	C Para 3.4.4.3.3
	78
	What is the governments expectation for pavement striping?  Has this been accomplished yearly?  

	T
	This has not been accomplished yearly. The Contractor will perform re-striping when the condition of the parking lots required re-striping for visibility and safe passage through the parking lots and roadways they maintain. DOE requires the facilities to be maintain at levels acceptable for safe parking and utilization of the areas. The ISS Contractor should assume re-striping timeframes based on industry standards for similar usage.


	113
	C Para 3.4.4.3.3
	78
	What has been historical number of potholes patched in the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	114
	C Para 3.4.4.3.3
	78
	What has been historical number of placing and replacing parking blocks in the past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	115
	C Para 3.4.4.3.3
	78
	What has been historical number of miles or linear resurfaced in the past 3 years?

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	116
	C Para 3.4.4.3.3
	78
	What has been historical sweeping/cleaning frequency?  Are all the paved roads done?  

	T
	Area have required sweeping infrequently either due to weather related incidents or gravel spills from vehicles passing through. This is not specifically tracked. Any paved road may require this type of maintenance if there has been an unsafe hazard introduced on the roadway.


	117
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4
	79
	What does the government consider regular grading of for gravel road and parking lots? Monthly? Quarterly? Or other?
	T
	The frequency is determined by the contractor that is sufficient to meet the contract standards stated in C.3.4.4.3.4.


	118
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4.a)
	79
	What is the scheduled service for grading Unpaved Road and Parking areas?

	T
	The frequency is determined by the contractor that is sufficient to meet the contract standards stated in C.3.4.4.3.4.


	119
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4.a)
	79
	What have been the historical amount of aggregate used over the past 3 years?

	T
	Approximately 3000 tons of various aggregate types.

	120
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4.a)
	79
	Is the aggregate a reimbursable cost or part of the FFP?
	T
	It is part of the firm-fixed price unless there is a significant repair that exceeds the limit of liability and an IDIQ task order is necessary.


	121
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4.b)
	79
	Who approves the repairs that are prioritized with cost in Deliverable 79?

	T
	The report is to provide DOE with a list of the deficiencies as prioritized by the ISS Contractor’s subject matter expert and include a cost estimate for those repairs.  The report is for DOE information and does not require approval.


	122
	C Para 3.4.4.3.4.b)
	79
	Are these repairs done as IDIQ or Service Level II service order?
	T
	Level II repairs for deficiencies found during the inspection that are above the limit of liability in PWS Section C.3.4.2.2.2 are negotiated IDIQ task orders.  Level II repairs below the level of liability are the responsibility of the ISS contractor.


	123
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for paving? 

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	124
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for guardrail repairs/replacement? 

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	125
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for culvert repair and installation?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	126
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for repairs to bridges?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	127
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for application of gravel/stone to surfaces? 

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	128
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for repair or replace damaged or washed out sections of paved or unpaved roads? 

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	129
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for excavate and replace pavement to gain access to sewer or drainage facilities or other utilities for repair work?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	130
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for repair or replace headwalls to prevent erosion or scour the embankment adjacent to culvert inlets?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	131
	C Para 3.4.4.4
	80
	Will the Government provide the historical workload over past 3 years under Level II Service Orders for cleaning of ditches?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	132
	C. Para 3.4.5 thru 3.3.5.3
	80
	Will the government provide historical workload for Erosion Repair and Storm Damage for the past 3 years (i.e. number of work orders, man hours, material costs)?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	133
	C.3.5.1.1
	81
	Can you clarify the first paragraph:
“The limit of liability presented in Section C.3.4 does not apply to services discussed in Section C.5, with the exception of corrective maintenance/Level II maintenance of Government provided equipment. The Contractor is fully responsible for all other activities described.”
Should C.5 be C.3.5? If so, does this mean that the limit of liability will only apply to government provided equipment for Custodial, Snow/Ice Abatement, Pest Control, and Mowing?

	T
	The Section Number has been corrected in Amendment 3. See changes to Section C.

It means that there is no limit of liability and the contractor is responsible for completing all PWS requirements except when government furnished equipment requires corrective maintenance above the limit of liability (i.e. major repair or replacement).

	134
	Collective Bargaining Agreement
	81
	On page 81 of the CBA it states:  “Prior to hiring any new employees who are not defined as “Grandfathered,” WEMS shall make arrangements to provide retiree health care benefits for new hires through the MEWA or an alternative program or funding mechanism.  The terms, conditions, and benefit levels of an alternative plan or funding mechanism for retiree health care benefits shall be negotiated with the USW.” Can DOE clarify this cost is reimbursable and if the stipend is available?

	N
	DOE is not a party to the collective bargaining agreement and therefore cannot provide an interpretation to the language. 
 
The only benefits reimbursable under the RFP are those benefits provided to grandfathered employees (i.e MEPP, MEWA and severance).  

	135
	C Para 3.5.1.3.1.d)
	82
	Will the government provide the workload for door tracks?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	136
	C Para 3.5.1.3.1.f)
	82
	Will the government provide the workload for window treatments?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	137
	C Para 3.5.4.1
	84
	How many level II services requests have been issued over the past 3 year on the average and what is the average amount of hours per Level II Service request? 

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	138
	C Para 3.5.2.2.1
	86
	How many special events has there been over the past 3 years?  What has been the average number of acres supported for each event?

	T
	The acreage has not been tracked. The events have entailed support of Science Alliance Days for approximately 1200 students for up to 5 days per year. Support of the DOE Science Bowl for 1-2 days a year. Congressional or public leadership tours are sometimes conducted for potentially 10 total days throughout the year.


	139
	C Para 3.5.2.4.1
	87
	What has been the historical workload for damage repairs over the past 3 years?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	140
	C Para 3.5.2.4.2.3
	87
	What the linear feet of trimming that has been historically performed?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	141
	C Para 3.5.2.4.2.4
	87
	Historically how many acres have been fertilized and lime applied to on a yearly basis?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	142
	C Para 3.5.2.4.2.5
	87
	Historically how many acres have been reseeded on yearly basis?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	143
	C Para 3.5.2.4.2.6
	87
	How many stump removals have been performed on yearly basis over past 3 years?
	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	144
	C Para 3.5.2.4.6
	87
	What has been the historical workload for tree maintenance over the past 3 years?  

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price.  The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.


	145
	C Para 3.5.2.4.6
	87
	Please confirm that are no shrubs that require maintenance?  If there are, what is the historical workload for shrubs over the past 3 years?

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE. Shrubbery is minimal at the Portsmouth Site.

	146
	C Para 3.5.2.4.6
	88
	What has been the historical workload for soil erosion repair maintenance over the past 3 years?  

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	147
	C Para 3.5.3.1
	88
	States in Part: “This includes facility steps and landings maintained by the D&D contractor and not assigned to the ISS Contractor for maintenance”  Does this mean the building under S&M vs Operationally Responsibility in TE J-8.C.2.1?  Please clarify and provide the total number of building that need steps and landing cleared?

	T
	It means that entryways to all occupied facilities that have steps or landing areas for access need to be treated and/or cleared to prevent personnel from falling from snow or ice. Refer to the snow removal plan in the documents library for a better understanding of the facilities and priorities that have been established for the site.

	148
	C.3.5.3 Snow and Ice Prevention/ Removal

and

J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix
	88

and



231, 1-27
	C.3.5.3.1 General – states “The Contractor shall provide de-icing (removal of snow or ice) and anti-icing from facilities, (e.g., entrances, steps, landings, sidewalks, driveways, roadways, parking areas, and handicapped accessibility areas) at PORTS with the exception of areas leased to ACP.  This includes facility steps and landings maintained by the D&D contractor and not assigned to the ISS Contractor for maintenance under Section C.3.4.4”.  However, Section J, Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix, shows discrepancies in the Snow Removal column compared to the above C.3.5.3.1 General statement. The Snow Removal Column shows some facilities, parking lots, and buildings marked with either N/A or D&D responsibility (pages 2-27) 
Which is correct, the PWS section C.3.5.3.1 or Section J, Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix, for Snow Removal responsibilities?

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for all snow and ice prevention removal. Refer to the snow removal plan in the documents library for a better understanding of the facilities and priorities that have been established for the site.
The snow removal references have been removed from the Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in Amendment 3.

	149
	C.3.5.3.1

J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix
	88
	Numerous facilities are listed as N/A or D&D responsibility for snow and ice prevention/removal on J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix. However, Section C.3.5.3.1 indicates snow and ice prevention/removal is the responsibility of the ISS contractor. Please clarify which is correct.
	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for all snow and ice prevention removal. Refer to the snow removal plan in the documents library for a better understanding of the facilities and priorities that have been established for the site.
The snow removal references have been removed from the Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in Amendment 3.


	150
	C Para 3.5.3.2
	89
	What has been the average number of ice/snow events over the past 3 years?
	T
	The Offeror can review information available from publicly available websites related to historical weather patterns. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to estimate the number of events that may be possible during the PWS period of performance.


	151
	C Para 3.5.3.6
	90
	How many Level I Snow and Ice Removal events have happened over the past 3 years?

	T
	The Offeror can review information available from publicly available websites related to historical weather patterns. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to estimate the number of events that may be possible during the PWS period of performance.


	152
	C Para 3.5.3.7
	90
	How many Level II Service Order events have happened over the past 3 years?

	T
	It would be unusual for DOE to issue a Level II service request for snow and ice removal.  The Level I requirements are expected to address almost all weather situations.


	153
	C Para 3.5.4.1
	90
	What is the frequency for each area listed in Attachment J-8.C.2.1?

	T
	The ISS Contractor shall develop and implement an integrated pest management approach to prevent pests and disease vectors from causing unacceptable damage to operations, personnel, property, or material.  DOE does not specify the frequency. The Contractor is required to meet the performance specifications identified in the PWS.


	154
	C.3.5.4.1
	90
	Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibilities Matrix, contradicts this General statement about the D&D contractor responsibility. Numerous facilities are listed as ISS responsibility.
	T
	Building pest control is the D&D contractor responsibility.
The pest control references have been removed from the Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in Amendment 3.


	155
	C Para 3.5.4.5.1)
	91
	How many emergency work orders have been issued over past 3 years?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	156
	C Para 3.5.4.5.2)
	91
	Please define what the Government considers an “Acceptable Level of Control”?

	T
	Section C.3.5.4.5.2 provides examples of the types of treatments that may be required to keep personnel safe from outdoor insect hazards in work areas.


	157
	C Para 3.5.4.5.3)
	91
	What has been the historical workload for removal of nuisance animals over past 3 years by month or year by type of animal removed?

	T
	The ISS Contractor should plan for at least 20 per month. Some months may be more and some less depending on the season.

	158
	C.3.6.5.7
	96
	Is DOE supplying the required digitization equipment to reduce the historical record inventory by what is being identified?
	T
	All the GFE is listed in Attachment J-3 and Attachment J-8.C.2.5.2. Any equipment required to complete the scope beyond what is provided is the responsibility of the contractor.


	159
	C.3.12
	102
	While the Government has asked us to price the labor for this scope element in Section L, L-8, DPLH Labor Hour CLINs, where would the Government prefer we price the Other Direct Costs relating to this scope and positions such as office supplies, travel, training, etc.?  Should we assume all Hardware and Software purchases will be handled through CLIN 401/402 as Cost Reimbursable?

	N
	General ODCs relative to worker performance should be included in the fixed unit rate. Hardware and software is handled through CLIN 0401/0402 as Cost Reimbursable.

	160
	C.3.12.1.2
 
J-8.C.3.3.1
	103
	C.3.12.1.2 states that the Cyber Security services will be provided to the ISS contractor through the Paducah ISS contractor. Attachment J-8.C.3.3.1, Information Technology Service Matrix, does not include Cyber Security oversight. What are the services relating to the T&M rates for Cyber Security? Programmatic cyber security documents and plans will be provided by the Paducah ISS contractor. 

	T
	The Cyber Security oversight line on Attachment J-8.C.3.3.1 does not include a “Y” in any column because the Portsmouth ISS Contractor does not provide that service to the other contractors.  

Attachment J-5 GFS&I Requirements indicates that the Paducah ISS Contractor provides the programmatic Cyber Security documents and plans for both Paducah and Portsmouth. The IT resources identified by labor category and hours under CLIN 3.12 will implement the cyber security requirements under C.3.12.1 as part of managing the IT infrastructure (i.e. installation of software, adhering to cyber security requirements as part of managing the network systems, etc.).


	161
	C.4 Cost Reimbursement Work
	108
	This section states that “no direct labor costs, indirect costs or fee shall be paid in addition to or related to cost reimbursement items…”
PWS 4.6 describes mobile equipment maintenance services that require labor. Please confirm that all labor costs (other than management) associated with performing mobile equipment maintenance described in PWS C.4.6 is included in the cost reimbursement work.

	T
	Amendment 3 has moved this scope to potential IDIQ effort. See changes to Section C. Pricing for this scope is not required as part of this proposal.

	162
	C.4.6
Attachment J-8.C.4.7
	108
	A significant amount of mobile equipment is being added to the ISS contract (D&D and DUF6 contractor mobile equipment). Will GFE be provided to support the new mobile equipment work (Lifts, diagnostic equipment, trailer(s) to pick up equipment, etc.)?

	T
	Any equipment and supplies not included on Attachment J-3 or Attachment J-8.C.2.5.2 required to perform the scope of the PWS is the responsibility of the Offeror.

	163
	C.4.6 Mobile Equipment Maintenance
	108
	Section C.4.6 Mobile Equipment Maintenance is new scope that is transferring from the D&D Contractor to the ISS Contractor.  Though the D&D equipment listing is provided with attachment J-8.C.4.7 “Inventory of D&D Contractor Mobile Equipment,”  the Historic FTEs chart provided in the document library does not reflect the FTEs related to mobile equipment maintenance.  Please provide the FTEs associated with Section C.4.6.

	T
	Amendment 3 has moved this scope to potential IDIQ effort. See changes to Section C. Pricing for this scope is not required as part of this proposal.

	164
	Section C.4.0 Cost Reimbursement Work
	108
	Section C.4.0 Cost Reimbursement Work page 108 states that, “No direct labor costs, indirect costs or fee shall be paid in addition to or related to cost reimbursement items included in PWS Section C.4.0.”  PWS element C.4.6 requires the offeror to provide preventative and corrective mobile equipment maintenance services for the D&D contractor.  Is the offeror also allowed to charge direct ODCs (parts, supplies, etc.) under the cost reimbursement CLIN?  

	T
	Amendment 3 has moved this scope to potential IDIQ effort. See changes to Section C. Pricing for this scope is not required as part of this proposal.


	165
	C.4.6
	109
	Mobile Equipment Maintenance include maintenance service along with transportation. Will DOE furnish equipment and supplies (i.e., equipment lift, trailer, etc.) to support performance?

	T
	Any equipment and supplies not included on Attachment J-3 or Attachment J-8.C.2.5.2 required to perform the scope of the PWS is the responsibility of the Offeror.

	166
	PWS C.5
	112
	Background:  The RFP Section C indicates 
"Such work, tasks, and activities may also include, but are not limited to, the following general areas of the PWS:
1) Facilities maintenance, alterations, and capitalization"

The current RFP has no reference to construction standards or description of the type of construction acquisition type (Design Build, Design Bid Build or Construction Management At Risk), or the types of construction.

Questions:

1. Would the Government please release two years’ worth of Task Order work identifying the projects, description, and award amount?
2. Would the Government please identify if architectural and engineering work could be required under the Portsmouth ISS effort or whether all A&E work will be performed by the PORT ISS contractor?
3. Would the Government please amplify section C with requirements, type of acquisition (DB, DBB, CM@Risk), standards for architecture & design, and construction.

	T
	Question 1 - Task orders are not yet determined and cannot be part of the proposal. Per Section B, DOE only guarantees $10,000 of IDIQ work.

Question 2 – The contractor is required to meet the PWS requirements of C.2.3. Any engineering requirements related to IDIQ will be negotiated for the task and the ability of the Offeror to perform engineering services (if they are a considerable portion of the task) will determine whether DOE considers utilizing the IDIQ option.  
  
Question 3 – Section C.2.3 is sufficient scope relative to the work identified in the PWS. Any engineering requirements related to IDIQ will be negotiated for the task.

	167
	H.5
	135
	Will the government please provide the Demographic information on the current workforce so that we may accurately estimate the cost of Fringe for this program?

	N
	Total FTEs:  69 salaried and 73 union
Total Grandfathered:  6 salaried and 57 union

	168
	H.5 Employee Compensation Pay and Benefits
	135
	Please provide all other HR related documents and  information required for Offeror’s to understand labor and benefit costs to meet the requirements of this clause, such as details on the benefits that are and are not cost reimbursable for grandfathered employees, the ETTP MEPP Plan and Amendments, etc.

	N
	Copies of the MEPP, MEWA and severance Plan documents have been posted on the Documents Library tab of the Portsmouth ISS site.

	169
	H.5, Employee Compensation and Benefits
	135
	With the aging workforce at PORTS it is anticipated there will be a considerable number employees on Leave Of Absence (LOA) due to medical issues throughout the contract.  Are LOA expenses cost reimbursable for employee’s pay while on LOA?  If not, can DOE provide the historical average of employee LOA’s?

	N
	LOA expenses are the responsibility of the contractor and are not cost reimbursable. Historical average of employee LOA is not available.


	170
	H-5
	135
	Does the Portsmouth site have specific adders that offerors should use when pricing labor/fringe (i.e. absences adder, continuity of service adder or continuity of pension adder)?

	N
	No – The Offeror will determine the costs for these items and include it in their pricing.

	171
	H-5(B)(2) (a)(1)
	135
	How many grandfathered employees work under the current incumbent contract? Can the government provide information regarding benefits required for grandfathered employees? What is the average seniority in years for these grandfathered employees? Under what SOW items do these personnel reside?
	N
	63 grandfathered employees (6 salaried and 57 union)

Required benefits for grandfathered employees include:  MEPP, MEWA and severance

Avg seniority:  32 yrs gf salaried; 34 yrs gf union

Assignment of grandfathered employees to work scope is information not available.    


	172
	H-5(B)(2) (a)(2)
	136
	Are there any site-required non-standard benefits that need to be provided to non-union or non-grandfather incumbents?
	N
	Non-union, non-grandfathered benefits are not available. Union non-grandfathered benefits are set forth in the current CBA provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2.  


	173
	H.5 Employee Compensation:  Pay and Benefits
	138
	Questions:
1.  Would the Government please release the Pension Plan for Grandfathered employees?
2. Would the Government please release the Benefits Plan for Grandfathered employees?
3. Would the Government please release list of cost-reimbursable benefits for Grandfathered employees?
4. Would the Government please release a copy of the Severance Plan for Grandfathered employees?

	N
	1. Copy of MEPP has been posted on the Documents Library tab of the Portsmouth ISS site.

2. Copy of MEWA has been posted on the Documents Library tab of the Portsmouth ISS site.

3. Cost-reimbursable benefits for grandfathered employees are MEPP, MEWA and severance.

4. Copy of the severance plan has been posted on the Documents Library tab of the Portsmouth ISS site.


	174
	H-11
	153
	As Ohio is a monopolistic state for Worker Compensation, can the Government share the current cost of Worker Comp insurance that the incumbent pays to the state of Ohio?
	N
	The Contractor pays for all worker’s compensation for their employees. The costs will vary from contractor to contractor and the incumbents cost is irrelevant to the Offeror’s proposal.


	175
	H.23 DOE-H-2043 ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBCONTRACTS (OCT 2014)
	161
	The RFP states: "(B) Transfer of Subcontracts. As the successor contractor, the Contractor agrees to accept transfer of existing subcontracts as determined necessary by DOE for continuity of operations. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to negotiate changes to the assigned subcontracts incorporating mandatory flow-down provisions at no cost. If the subcontractor refuses to accept the changes or requests price adjustments, the Contractor will notify the Contracting Officer in writing. DOE reserves the right to direct the Contractor to transfer to DOE or another Contractor any subcontract awarded under this contract." Would the Government provide a list of existing subcontracts?

	N
	This is a standard clause; however, DOE has not identified any contracts that the Offeror is required to accept for this scope. 

	176
	H.41(B) Key personnel team requirements
	170
	"All Key Personnel shall have an "L" clearance level (or equivalent) at Contract Award and obtain a "Q" clearance level within 180 days after Transition is complete. 

This language, as written, prohibits the bidding of non-government, qualified key personnel.  

We respectfully request that DOE consider modification of this language to  "All Key Personnel shall have the ability to obtain an "L" clearance level during contract Transition and have the ability to obtain a "Q" clearance level within 180 day after Transition is complete."

	N
	DOE sees no difference in the language related to the key personnel requirements. The reason the language is written in this manner is that it also requires the contractor to request and complete the necessary paperwork to obtain those clearance. The proposed language is not specific enough to require the contractor to take steps to obtain the clearance – only that they have the “ability” to be cleared. No change will be made.  

	177
	Section I
	196
	I.102 and I.106 cite different versions of FAR52.227-1.  
Suggest deleting the older citation I.106

	T
	Amendment 3 has revised clause I.106 to show as “Reserved.”

	178
	J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix

and

J-8.C.3.4.3a Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance Performed by the Contractor
	231, 2-27





231, 2-3
	There are discrepancies between Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix,  and Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance Performed by the Contractor.  

Below are the Facilities that are notated as S&M on Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix, but NOT identified on Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance Performed by the Contractor:
Facility Identification #
· X-108A-M2, X-112A, and X-720

And 

Below are the Facilities that are notated on Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance Performed by the Contractor, but NOT on Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix:
Facility Identification #
· X-108T

Please clarify which Facilities are to be maintained by ISS Contractor.

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for X-108A-M2, X-112A, and X-108T. The ISS Contractor is not responsible for X-720. 

Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance and Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix have been reconciled in Amendment 3. 

	179
	Attach J-11
	231
A-1 thru A-35
	As most of the PWS elements associated with Deductions on the QASP are part of CLINs 0101 & 0102, and these CLINs are estimated by the Government to be ~$2M/month (see RFP Section B.5(n)), are the deductions for these PWS elements taken against the entire CLIN amount? Or against the PWS portion of the CLIN? For example, on C.3.4.3.2.7, does a 94% operational lighting system result in a deduction of 5% of $2M, or a $100,000 deduction?  Or is it a 5% deduction of the PWS C.3.4 portion of the CLIN?

	T
	The deduction percentage is taken against the entire monthly amount for the CLIN.  

Attachment J-11 updated deduction percentages and approaches in Amendment 3.

	180
	Attach J-7
	231
	Can the Government provide a copy of the Collective Bargining Agreement documentation?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2. 

	181
	Attachment 7 CBA WD Ports ISS
	231
	Will the Government provide an actual copy of the CBA between contractor: Wastren-EnergX Mission Support, LLC, and union: United Steel Workers Local 689, effective 01/18/2011 through 03/16/2015 as we cannot find a copy on any site?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2.


	182
	Attachment 7 CBA WD Ports ISS
	231
	Please confirm that this is the most current CBA as it has expired in Mar of 2015, over 5 years ago?

	N
	The parties are currently operating under the current CBA provided as Attachment J-7.


	183
	Attachment 7 CBA WD Ports ISS
	231
	Discussion:  The Government has not provided a copy of an active Collective Bargaining Agreement with the UNITED STEEL, PAPER AND FORESTRY, RUBBER, MANUFACTURING, ENERGY, ALLIED-INDUSTRIAL AND SERVICE WORKERS INTERNATIONAL UNION, AFL-CIO AND ITS AFFILIATED LOCAL NO. 689.    The unionized workforce is a significant percentage of the projected Portsmouth Infrastructure Support Services staff.  The last agreement on file expired on March 16, 72015.  Without a current agreement in place, it is impossible to determine the financial liability for the workforce represented by the union.  A five year old CBA that was established on a cost plus award fee contract, cannot reflect the current rules for employment, current compensation and thereby costs for the employer.  It provides the incumbent with a huge advantage as they have access to the following undefined items that include: 
1. Number of people currently employed by position by longevity
1. Lack of list of current labor categories, position descriptions with experience/education requirements and hourly wage. No description for wage rate based on longevity (weeks, months, years) in the position.
1. The rules for overtime and holiday pay are not defined
1. Cost of living adjustments, the periodicity of adjustment and the calculation are not defined
1. 401K plan and the expectation of employer contribution is absent
1. Annual contract bonus, payable at what timeframe, the calculation for the bonus and the reimbursement by the Government for that cost
1. Are retirees currently on the medical, dental, eye and life insurance plans, the number and projected cost
1. The health benefit equivalency.  Does the non-grandfathered employees receive equivalent health plan benefits of Grandfathered employees?
1. There is no descriptions associated with preventive care, emergency care, hospice, home health, prescription, dental, eye plans for CBA employees.  There is amplification on the deductible, % of co-pay, in-network/out of network requirements.
1. COBRA mandates
1. Percent of benefit plan cost paid by employee
1. Retiree benefits and those costs

FAR 16.103 (b) “A firm-fixed price contract, which best utilizes the basic profit motive of certainty.  However, when a reasonable basis for firm pricing does not exist, other contract types should be considered, and negotiations should be directed toward selecting a contract type (or combination of types) that will appropriately tie profit to contractor performance.”

We believe, based on the lack of information provided in the RFP, that the unionized workforce cost cannot be priced to an acceptable degree of clarity.  

Since you have most likely determined FAR 16.103( b ) applies, we request the Government to provide the following so all bidders are pricing the same and can be compared equally and fairly: 

Questions: 
124a:  What are the current labor categories and current wages for each?
124b:  Is there a projected increase in the out years?
124c:  What is the current health benefit plan that is currently used?
124d:  What is the current pension / retirement contributions?
124e:  Is there a current 401K plan?
124f:  What is the current cost of living adjustments being used?
124g:  What are the rules for over time and holiday pay?
124h:  What are the number of holidays?
124i:  What is amount of sick leave and or paid time off given?
124j:  What are the job descriptions for each positon?
124k:  How much is paid out to current retirees on an annual basis?
124l:  Is the retirement fund solvent or is it under funded?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2. The parties are currently operating under the current CBA provided as Attachment J-7.

Under the current incumbent contract as well as under the RFP, the only items that are cost reimbursable are the costs associated with the MEPP, MEWA and severance.  

1. This information is not available.
2. The CBA includes a list of the job classifications, wages and benefits for union employees.
3. See CBA for union.
4. Total COLA increases paid out since 2016 to present are $2.29/hour.  In addition, the union employees received a 2 percent gross wage increase effective 4-17-17.  
5. Refer to current CBA; otherwise information is not available.
6. The only items that are reimbursable are the MEPP, MEWA and severance.
7. As of 9/30/20, for Medical/Dental/Vision:
Pre-65 Retirees – 2 enrolled
Post-65 Retirees – 39 enrolled
No other information is available.
8. Information for non-grandfathered salary is not available.  Non-grandfathered union is covered by the CBA.
9. Information is not available.
10. Information is not available.
11. See CBA for union; this information for salary is not available
12. Post retirement benefits for grandfathered employees include medical, dental, vision and life insurance.

Refer to the above-numbered responses for Questions 124a-124l.

	184
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description
	231
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description – What do the numbers in columns 2-10 identify? Number of ports? Number of users?

	T
	Section J.8, C.3.3 Table 2 titled Communication System Description provides the numbers (quantities) of the items in operation for the type of system listed in the header.

	185
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description
	231
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description – How many Direct Dial numbers are being provided?

	T
	Section J.8, C.3.3 Table 2 titled Communication System Description provides the numbers (quantities) of the items in operation for the type of system listed in the header.


	186
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description
	231
	ATTACHMENT J 8.C.3.3.2 Communication Systems Description – How many simultaneous call paths are being provided?

	T
	Section J.8, C.3.3 Table 2 titled Communication System Description provides the numbers (quantities) of the items in operation for the type of system listed in the header.


	187
	Attachment J-5
	231
	Attachment J-5 “Government Furnished Services and Interface Requirements matric” Line item 7 “waste Water Systems” states “contractor responsible for individual facilities are responsible for S&M of water systems within the established point of transition”.  Can the bidders be provided with the locations of the “established point of transition”?

	T
	The ISS contractor is responsible for maintaining the sewage system within the footprint of facilities with S&M responsibilities assigned to the ISS contractor.  


	188
	Attachment J-5
	231
	GFS&I Requirements Matrix – Item 11 – Relocation Services – is fixed price to D&D contractor limited to 500 hours/year?  

	T
	Yes.

	189
	Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements
	231
	Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements, Page 3, item 3, Telephone.  The note under Other Contractor Interface Requirements states the PAX and Red Phones have already been deactivated.  Does this mean the PAX and Red Phone support requirements no longer exist?

	T
	Yes – they are deactivated and do not require maintenance.

	190
	Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements
	231
	Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements:
a. Page 4, Item 5, How many fiber and telecommunications (phone and network) lines are repaired each year?
b. Page 5, Item 11, How many relocations are provided each year?  It’s clear the D&D Contractor is limited to 500 direct labor hours annually, what about TSS?

	T
	This information is not tracked by DOE and the past 3 years have been conducted under firm-fixed price. The Offeror is responsible to determine the support required to perform the PWS as part of the proposal being sought.

Up to 10 relocations for DOE and support contractor personnel (TSS) as identified in Section C.3.4.1.1.2.


	191
	Attachment J-8. C.3.4.4.2B
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.4.4.2B “PORTS Site Map” was last updated on 06-29-2016.  The version provided does not include all previous ACP de-lease activities such as XT-801, X-112, X-3000 etc.  Will a revised map be provided to bidders that accurately reflects PORTS site current areas of responsibilities?
	T
	The map provided is the latest available for public release. Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix (including any amendments) accurately identifies the facilities that the ISS Contractor is responsible for. Section C.3.4.3 identifies this attachment (and not the map) as being the listing of facilities under ISS responsibilities.


	192
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1 - Page 3 of 14 – “Other (Inc. VM)” Column1, Row 9 – Expand on what “Other” defines, is this 250 Virtual Machines?

	T
	Yes – this is virtual machines.

	193
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1 - Page 6 of 14 - PORTS to PGDP Connections Column 1 and 3, Row 19 – Separate connection from an additional dedicated ISP at 100MB or is this a connection between site locations?

	T
	This is a connection between site locations.

	194
	Attachment J-8.C.3.3.2
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.3.2, Page 2, Communication Systems Description identifies PA/Public Warning, PAX, and Radio systems.  
Which brand of systems are in use?  Also, please explain PAX system’s equipment and functional use.

	T
	The PAX system is deactivated and no longer requires maintenance.

	195
	Attachment J-8.C.3.6.1
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.6.1, Page 2.  Given that Documentum is end of life, is there a current effort to replace it?

	T
	Any effort to replace the records management system would be handled as an IDIQ Task Order.

	196
	Att-J-7
	231
	Will the Government please provide a full copy of the Collective Bargaining Agreement identified as CBA-2020-180?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2.


	197
	J-11
	231
A-17
	Referenced PWS C.3.5.1.3.5 states the D&D contractor will be responsible for pickup and disposition of sanitary waste at a designated dumpster from the facility. Is the ISS Contractor responsible for disposition of sanitary waste? 

	T
	The waste management requirement are identified in Section C.2.2.11. Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.

	198
	J-11
	231
A-13
	Referenced PWS C.3.4.3.2.12 cannot be located.

	T
	Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.  

	199
	J-11
	231
A-10
	Referenced PWS C.3.3.2 does not reference stated QASP requirement.

	T
	Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.  

	200
	J-11
	231
A-29
	Please verify that the correct facility number (C-103) is referenced for C.3.7.2.

	T
	Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.

	201
	J-11
	231

A-29
	PWS C.3.7 does not include identified subsection.

	T
	Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.

	202
	J-11
	231
A-28
	Referenced PWS C.3.6.6 does not match QASP requirement.

	T
	Attachment J-11 has been corrected in Amendment 3.

	203
	J-11
	231
	Numerous references are made to a “Performance Evaluation Implementation Plan (PEIP).” Will the PEIP be made available in the document library?

	T
	There is not a PEIP for Portsmouth – this was only applicable to Paducah. The references to the PEIP in Attachment J-11 have been removed in Amendment 3.  

	204
	J-4
	231
	Deliverable 80; C.3.4.4.3.6 states Inspection Report will be submitted on an annual basis. Should the schedule be revised for annual submission?

	T
	Yes – Section J –Attachment J-4 List of Deliverables has been updated in Amendment 3.

	205
	J-8.C.2.1
	231
	Grounds Service areas shown contradict what is shown in J-8.C.5.2.2a Mowing Map

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for all mowing except at the OSDDF areas, any active construction/demolition areas (such as the process buildings) or the ACP facilities. Attachment J-8-C.3.5.2.2a, Mowing Map, and applicable performance standard for these areas Attachment J-8.C.3.5.2.1, Grounds Performance Level Standard are identified as the governing requirements in Section C.

The mowing references have been removed from the Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in Amendment 3.


	206
	J-8.C.2.1
	231
	Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Bdlgs/Structures for S&M, does not list X-112A, X-720, or X-1107B/P.  Were these facilities left of intentionally?

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for X-112A and X-1107B/P. The ISS Contractor is not responsible for X-720. 

Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3a, Characteristics of Buildings/Structures for Surveillance and Maintenance and Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix have been reconciled in Amendment 3.


	207
	J-8.C.3.3.2
	231
	Please describe what the numbers in each column of this spreadsheet represent.  
	T
	Section J.8, C.3.3 Table 2 titled Communication System Description provides the numbers (quantities) of the items in operation for the type of system listed in the header.


	208
	J-8.C.3.4.1.3
	231
	ATTACHMENT J-8.C.3.4.1.3 Fleet Vehicles – There are several abbreviations in this table of vehicles.
Questions: 
1. The first three items are listed as HD. Assuming that means Heavy Duty, what specific type/model/size vehicles are these?
1. The next two items are listed as MD Other and MD pickup. Assuming MD means Medium Duty, what specific type/model/size vehicles are these?

	T
	ATTACHMENT J-8.C.3.4.1.3 Fleet Vehicles has been updated in Amendment 3 to provide the additional information requested.

	209
	J-8.C.3.4.3.2.9
	231
	C-633 and C-745-E; should these facilities be identified as X-633 and X-745E?

	T
	Yes – Attachment J-8.C.3.4.3.2.9, Fences and Wire Cages Listing/Description has been updated in Amendment 3.

	210
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Roofing Systems?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	211
	J-8.C.3.4.4.2a
	231
	Please provide additional details for the statement “paved areas around larger facilities” shown under the heading “Parking Lots by Facility Number”

	T
	Includes the cumulative area of paved parking lots at facilities not specifically identified.  For example the parking lots at X-710 and X-720 are included in the total area listed.

	212
	J-8.C.3.4.4.2e
	231
	It appears there is an error with this file.  We cannot read the print off to see relative information related to culverts.
	N
	We have downloaded the file and the locations of the culverts and descriptions are clear if you zoom in on the file. For printing purposes, it would be best to print on a drawing size printer.  


	213
	J-8.C.5.2.2a Mowing Map 

and 

J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix
	231

and 

231, 8-21
	There are discrepancies between the Mowing Map and the Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix. Which document takes precedence for Grounds Service?
The Mowing Map shows levels assigned to the following areas, but the Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix shows these areas assigned to D&D for Grounds Service: 
Page 8:  X-230J-5, X-230J-5(B), X-230J-6, X-230J-6(B), X-230J-7(B), X-230K, X-230L, X-231A, X-231B
Page 9:  X-300, X-300A, X-300B, X-300C, X-330, X-333, X-333T10, X-333T2, X-333T3, X-333T4, X-333T5, X-333T6, X-333T7, X-333T8, X-333T9, X-333T11, X-342A, X-342B, X-343
Page 12:  X-611, X-612, X-615, X-616, X-616 CAP, X-616A, X-618
Page 13:  X-624
Page 14:  X-700, X-701E, 701F, X-705
Page 15:  X-720, X-735, X-735A, X-735 N, X-735S, X-736
Page 16:  X-744N, X-744P, X-744Q, X-744S, X-744W
Page 17:  X-745C, X-745E, X-747F, 747H
Page 18:  X-749, X-749/120, X-749A, X-749B
Page 21:  XT-847

	T
	The ISS Contractor is responsible for all mowing except at the OSDDF areas, any active construction/demolition areas (such as the process buildings) or the ACP facilities. Attachment J-8-C.3.5.2.2a, Mowing Map, and applicable performance standard for these areas Attachment J-8.C.3.5.2.1, Grounds Performance Level Standard are identified as the governing requirements in Section C.
The mowing references have been removed from the Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix in Amendment 3.


	214
	Section J - Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements
	231
	Section J - Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements - Ports ISS – Page 3 – Telephone – “The Contractor provides all required telephone services including maintaining telecommunications capability and capacity, data and network circuits, alerting and crash alarm systems, and other miscellaneous voice and data circuits.” – Would like to verify that the contractor is responsible for paying an Internet Service Provider/Phone Service provider for the duration of the contract.

	T
	The payment to the provider is a cost reimbursable item. This has been clarified in Section C in Amendment 3.

	215
	Section J - Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements
	231
	Section J - Attachment J-5 GFSI Requirements - Ports ISS – Page 3 – Telephone – “At Portsmouth, the PAX and Red Phones have already been deactivated” – Are these all converted over to VOIP, is the contractor still responsible for service to these lines?

	T
	The ISS contractor is responsible for both the NEC PBX and CUCM (VOIP). The plan is to transition 100% to VOIP over the course of the 5 year term.

	216
	Section J-11 Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP)
	231
	J-11 identifies 139 deductions across 20 performance areas.

The RFP does not provide a historical deduction history so that offerors may estimate the current workforce capability of meeting performance standards.  Much like DOE EMCBC announces Performance Award fee results for the M&O contractors, we don’t see any proprietary claim associated with the distribution of Government decided performance deductions for ISS contracts.

There is no clear guidance in J-11 on how the deduction is applied to the invoicing process.   We are unable to estimate the impact because the process is not defined. 

There are sixty five instances of deductions which, when combined, prevent a contractor from covering its cost. These sixty five deduction are 1-10% of the applicable monthly invoiced amount for the CLIN until corrective action is taken.

There is no description of how the deduction is applied, if it is recoverable, or whether the penalty is assessed on the performance work statement level or the whole CLIN.  It appears based on the whole CLIN invoice amount. 

Per Section B.5, Page B-18, CLIN 0101 Operations and 0303 IT/Cyber are estimated to be funded at $23M annually or $1.9M/month.  CLIN 0201 Safeguards and Security annual estimate is $4.5M/year or $375K/month. 
As an example, CLIN 0101 Operations and CLIN 0303 IT/Cyber each have one deduction of 10% during a month.  $1.9M x 10% = $190K x 2 = $380K per month.

The total monthly invoice is projected to be $2,275,000.

That same month CLIN 0201 Safeguards and Security receives a deduction of 5% or $375K x 5% =$18,750 per month.

In total those three deductions could be $398,750 for a month or 17% of the invoiced amount ($398,750/$2,275,000=17%)

Questions:
1.  Would the Government please provide examples of computation used for all 20 Performance Work Statement sections in the QASP (i.e., Grounds Maintenance C.3.5.2, Pest Control Services C.3.5.4, etc.)?
2. Would the Government please provide a history of deduction amount annually and by the 20 Performance Work Statement elements?
3. Are deductions recoverable after correction and if so, what is that process?

	T
	11. DOE has reduced, clarified, or minimized the potential deductions per PWS element where possible in Amendment 3. The QASP deductions are clear on the cost per deficiency. When it states that the cost would be 10% of the monthly CLIN amount the calculation is easily determined. The higher the percentage, the higher risk to the government of non-performance.
  
11. The monthly deductions on the current contract have not been significant. There may be an exception for a situation of a systematic ongoing issue that would require extensive assessment by DOE and in that event a larger deduction would be applied.

11. Deductions are not recoverable. As stated in Section 2.2.1 of the QASP, the COR and CO will make determinations on deductions for each billing period, and also decide when a deficiency needs to be elevated for remedial or corrective action. If determined that an unsatisfactory area warrants a deduction, the COR/ACOR will complete a Contractor Evaluation Report [(CER), as found in Appendix B] and submit the information to the Contractor with a copy to the CO.  The CO will consider the contractor’s response and make a final determination on the applied deduction, if any. Section 2.2.2 provides a discussion on remediation of the nonconformance.


	217
	Section J-7 CBA
	231
	Questions:
1. Would the Government please provide information on the current workforce to include:
a. Number of employees by CBA labor category?
b. The number and use of part-time employees
c. Average Company Service credit?
d. The number of grandfathered employees?
e. All employees, the labor categories, number of FTE, the low, middle and high range of wages/hour or salary?

	N
	
a. Information not available
b. Information not available
c. Average service credit based on total employees:  salaried 10.9, hourly 30.13 years 
d. The number of grandfathered employees is 63 (6 salary and 57 union).
e. Total number of employees:  69 salaried and 73 union. Other information not available.  

In addition, see responses provided to questions related to the Attachment J-7 CBA WD section under question #183.


	218
	Section J-7 CBA
	231
	Section J-7 indicates “Collective Bargaining Agreement between contractor: Wastren-EnergX Mission Support, LLC, and union: United Steel Workers Local 689, effective 01/18/2011 through 03/16/2015.”

The Collective Bargaining Agreement was not released with the RFP

Questions:
1. Would the Government please release the current version of the Collective Bargaining Agreement?
2. Would the Government please validate that the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) in force expired March 16, 2015 and that is not a typographical error?
3. If the CBA has not been renegotiated during Portsmouth Mission Alliance, LLC (PMA) ISS contract, and the current CBA expired in 2015, would the Government please provide, for the purposes of equalization of cost/price development amongst offerors and to not provide the incumbent with an unfair competitive advantage:
a. The current labor categories and descriptions?
b. The Government’s expectation of the bidding wage for each labor category?
c. The current benefits if they differ from the CBA?
d. The Government’s escalation of CBA Wages year over year?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2. The parties are currently operating under the current CBA provided as Attachment J-7.

In addition, see responses provided to questions related to the Attachment J-7 CBA WD section under question #183.


	219
	J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix

J-8.C.3.4.4.2c Listing of Bridges

J-8.C.3.4.4.2d Map Detailing Bridge Locations
	231, 
J-8.C.2.1 page 5
	There are discrepancies between the two referenced sections:

Section J, Attachment J-8.C.2.1, Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix, on page 5 shows the ISS Contractor responsible for 2 Bridges (X-202A North Fog Road bridge and X-202BSouth Fog Road Bridge).  
However both Section J, Attachment J-8.C.3.4.4.2c, Listing of Bridges and Section J, Attachment J-8.C.3.4.4.2d, Map Detailing Bridge Locations, only indicate 1 Bridge (X-202B South Fog Road Bridge).  Please clarify the bridges that the ISS contractor is responsible for.

	T
	In the past, due to recognition of the standards, an additional water conveyance structure was re-characterized as a bridge (named as X-202A North Fog Road bridge in the matrix). This structure is located under the North Access Road and consists of an original 12-foot diameter Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP) that has been lined with an additional 10-foot × 8-inch CMP liner pipe. As the result of recent completion of the Culvert 17 re-lining project, the span of the North Access Road has been reduced below the requirement for being inspected as a bridge and will be inspected as a culvert. 

Therefore, the ISS contractor is responsible for maintaining 1 bridge on the Fog Road.  The previously identified bridge on the North Access Road has been reclassified as a culvert. The ISS Contractor is responsible for the bridges and culverts (both the culvert and bridge and Fog Road).


	220
	J-8.C.3.4.4.2b
	231, Map Legend
	Light Green color says: “D&D Contractor but FSS Contractor has certain Maintenance responsibilities’”  Will the government provide a detailed breakout what the FSS Contractor is responsible for at the D&D areas and what the D&D contractor is responsible for?  

	T
	The map provided is the latest available for public release. Section J - Attachment J-8.C.2.1 Listing of Facilities Responsibility Matrix accurately identifies the facilities that the ISS Contractor is responsible for. Section C.3.4.3 identifies this attachment (and not the map) as being the listing of facilities under ISS responsibilities.


	221
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 2
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for structural components that include: foundations and exterior walls, interior walls and ceilings, chimneys and stacks, porches and decks, structural elements, loading ramps and platforms, exterior and interior stairs, sub-floors, windows, glazing, and thermal and moisture protection?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	222
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 3
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Interior Walls, Ceilings and Trim?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	223
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 4
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Interior Doors?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	224
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 5
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Doors, Windows and Screens?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	225
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 6
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Stairs and Stairwells?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	226
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 7
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Cabinets and Countertops?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	227
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 8
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Interior Accessories to include repair or replace all damaged, inoperative, or missing interior accessories, paper holders, soap trays, dispensers, towel bars, shower curtain rods, medicine cabinets, mirrors, and doorstops?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	228
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 9
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Flooring and Floor Covering?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	229
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 10
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Baseboards?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	230
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 11
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Exterior Walls?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	231
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 12
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Exterior Trim?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	232
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 13
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Roof Drains, Gutters and Downspouts?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	233
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 14
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Exterior Concrete and Masonry Structures?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	234
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 15
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Exterior Accessories to include but not limited to exhaust fan vent caps, chimney caps, lighting, and other miscellaneous components and hardware?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	235
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 16
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Painting?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	236
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 17
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Plumbing Systems?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	237
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 18
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Electrical Material and Equipment?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	238
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 19
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Metal/Sheet Metal Working?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	239
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 20
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Keys and Locks?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	240
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 22
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Miscellaneous?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	241
	J-8.C.3.4.3.b
	231, Item 23
	What are the number of service orders for repairs, labor hours and material costs for the past 3 year for Furnishing and Fixtures?

	T
	The Documents Library has been updated with information from the past two years from the CMMS system to demonstrate the current maintenance activities. This is not to be assumed to be all the maintenance required for performing the requirements of the PWS. The Offeror is responsible to provide a proposal that fulfills the requirements of the RFP.


	242
	Section J, Attachment J-8.C.3.11 Minimum Qualifications for Labor Hour CLINs.
	231, 7 – 9 of 9
	In the referenced Section J Attachment, the last four (4) positions listed are not included in the Labor Hour CLIN worksheets of the RFP’s Section L – L-8 document. 
The positions missing from L-8: Senior Quality Assurance (QA)/Quality Control Specialist,Cyber Security Manager, Senior Cyber Security Specialist, Cyber Security Specialist
Question
1. Will the Government clarify and / or update the documents on if the contractor should supply labor hour pricing for these 4 positions?

	T
	These labor hour CLINS are not required as part of the procurement. The qualifications are included in the event they become necessary in the future.

	243
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1
	231, Page 14 of 14
	Attachment J-8.C.3.12.1 lists Maximo as an Optional Software for Support of Fixed-Price Scope. 

Questions
1. Is Maximo currently used by the incumbent ISS Contractor?  
2. Is Maximo used in place of or in addition to SOMAX?

	T
	SOMAX is currently in use by the ISS Contractor at Portsmouth. The Paducah Contractor currently utilizes Maximo. Both are acceptable systems. The clarification of “Maximo, SOMAX, or equivalent” has been made in an Amendment 3.

	244
	L.9(c)(4)(ii)
	247
	Given the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the potential impacts to travel, and printing and shipping services, would DOE eliminate the requirement to provide hard copy proposals and USB flash drives and only require proposals to be submitted electronically via FedConnect? 

	N
	Proposals must be submitted in accordance with the RFP. Amendment 3 has extended the due date for proposals to 1600 (04:00pm) EST on Thursday, December 10, 2020.

	245
	L.9
	249
	L-9(f)(4) requires spreadsheets in print shall be 10 point or larger, and that print type on provided Excel files shall not be changed. Can the Government confirm that adding one of the worksheets in print form at whatever size that happens to be is acceptable? If not, can we print off worksheet to multiple pages? When printing to fit a page, how do we confirm that the printed Excel file is 10 point or larger? Can this requirement be waived on Volume III, as there is no page limit.

	N
	The offeror is responsible for providing a hard copy proposal that is legible and that is clearly understood. The required specifications provide the parameters of what DOE has determined to be acceptable. 

	246
	RFP L.10(3)(i)

L.10(j)
	251

254
	L.10(3)(i) requires inclusion of Section H clause “H.14 DOE-H-2017, Responsible Corporate Official and Corporate Board of Directors (Oct 2014)”. This clause is also required in section L.10(j). Please confirm that this information is required in both spots.

	N
	Offerors are responsible for providing a proposal that conforms to the solicitation’s instructions. 

	247
	RFP L.10(d)(1)
	252
	RFP L.10(b) states in part: “Offerors shall include the information listed in the following paragraphs in Volume I, assembled in the order listed below.”

RFP L.10(d)(1) Administrative Information references various sub-elements of “FAR 52.215-1, Instructions to Offerors - Competitive Acquisition.” Because this FAR clause requires that “(c)(2) The first page of the proposal must show – (i) the solicitation number; (ii) The name, address, and telephone and facsimile numbers of the offeror (and electronic address if available)..(etc.)”

Would the Government please confirm that the requirements in Section L.10.d – Administrative Information should be assembled in the order prescribed by Section L (and NOT as the first page of the proposal as required by FAR 52.215-1 paragraphs 2(i) through 2(v))?

	N
	Offerors must comply with the requirements of FAR 52.215-1 and the instructions prescribed under RFP provision L.10(b). The information requested by the stated FAR clause and RFP provision are not the same. 

	248
	L.13 
	258
	The Offeror shall include an organizational breakdown structure to accomplish the PWS and the benefits of its use of subcontracting or teaming arrangements (if any). 
Question: Will the Government exclude the OBS from page count?  

	N
	In accordance with the RFP, the Key Personnel and Organization section shall not exceed five pages, exclusive of resumes and letters of commitment. The organizational breakdown structure is not excluded from the five page count. 

	249
	L.13
	258
	The Offeror shall provide a detailed staffing plan that demonstrates its ability to obtain, retain, and maintain the adequate numbers of qualified personnel to safely and effectively perform all elements of the PWS 

Question: Will the Government provide a copy of the current Safeguards and Security Organization and provide the minimum Post hours that are required for the Safeguards & Security PWS tasks?

	T
	The hours for the security management organization are the same as the normal working hours of the contractor. (See Section F, F.5).  

The Offeror shall determine the security resources necessary to complete the PWS requirements.

	250
	L.13(b) Organization
	258
	The RFP states “provide a detailed staffing plan that demonstrates its ability to obtain, retain, and maintain the adequate numbers of qualified personnel to safely and effectively perform all elements of the PWS.” Please clarify if the Government is requiring a “staffing plan” that shows the total number of proposed FTEs by labor discipline in the Offeror’s response to this section. 

	N
	The proposal must include a detailed staffing plan as provided in the RFP. It is the offeror’s responsibility to prepare a staffing plan that meets the RFP instructions to “safely and effectively perform all elements of the PWS.”

	251
	L.14 Proposal Preparation Instructions, Volume II – Past Performance (a)
	259
	Due to the type of contract and the PWS requirements, in the prescribed NAICS code, to increase competition, we respectfully request DOE consider the past performance for contracts currently being performed and expending those that have been completed to within the past five (5) years to have been completed within the last seven (7) years.

	N
	Offerors are responsible for providing a proposal that conforms to the solicitation’s instructions.

	252
	L.14(a)

L.14(b)
	259
	The RFP states “The Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined in FAR 9.601(1), shall provide past performance information on up to three (3) contracts per member, either currently being performed or completed by the Offeror/members...”  During the pre-proposal conference, Mr. Ortiz stated that the Offeror must provide information on three contracts rather than “up to” three contracts and team subcontractors must provide information on two contracts rather than “up to” to contracts.  Please clarify if Offerors are to provide three contracts or up to three contracts for evaluation under Factor 3. Also, please clarify if Offerors are to provide two contracts or up to two contracts for evaluation under Factor 3

	N
	In accordance with the RFP, the Offeror, including all members of a teaming arrangement, shall provide past performance information on up to three (3) contracts per offeror/member and on up to two (2) contracts for each proposed teaming subcontractor.

	253
	L.14 (h)
	260
	If a Team Subcontractor performed as the lead for which an L3 form is being submitted, but the Reference Contract was held by the proposed Prime Offeror, would the Government accept the Prime’s CPARs for the Team Subcontractor if the CPARs specifically evaluates the scope of the work areas for which the subcontractor is responsible?

	N
	Submission of a past performance questionnaire is highly recommended as CPARS can only be used to support contract performance of the prime contractor. In accordance with FAR 9.604(3), the Government will “[h]old the prime contractor fully responsible for contract performance, regardless of any team arrangement between the prime contractor and its subcontractors.”


	254
	L.14(g) and Attachment L-5
	260 

and 

284
	L.14(g) Terminated Contracts (Attachment L-5, List of Contracts Terminated for Default or Convenience)
(g) Terminated contracts. The Offeror shall provide a listing in Attachment L-5, List of Contracts Terminated for Default or Convenience, of any contracts of the Offeror, to include all members of a teaming arrangement, as defined by FAR 9.601(1), and/or Teaming Subcontractors that were terminated for default, including the reasons therefore, within the past five (5) years from the original solicitation issuance date. This listing of terminated contracts is not limited to only those contracts contained in the Attachment L-3, Past Performance Reference Information Forms. If there are no terminated contracts for default to report, Attachment L-5, List of Contracts Terminated for Default or Convenience, shall be submitted with a blank table, along with a note indicating that there are no terminated contracts within the time period specified in the solicitation.

Q1:  Can the government please clarify if Attachment L-5 should include only contracts terminated for default within the past five (5) years and not to also include contracts terminated for convenience?
Q2:  If offerors are to also include contracts terminated for convenience within Attachment L-5 in addition to contracts terminated for default, would the government consider removing the requirement for contracts terminated for convenience?  As part of the normal course of federal, state, and local government and commercial procurements, the customer may decide to terminate a contract for its “convenience” or for reasons that have nothing to do with the contractor’s performance.  As a contract terminated for convenience does not translate to a contractor’s viability and the list can be quite extensive in the normal course of business over a five year period, we respectfully request Section L.14(g) and Attachment L-5 be revised to include only contracts terminated for default within the past five (5) years from the original solicitation issuance date.

	N
	1. In accordance with RFP provision L-14(g), Attachment L-5 shall contain a listing of any contracts that were terminated for default within the past five (5) years. 

2. Not applicable (see response directly above).

	255
	L.14(h)
	260
	The RFP requirement to provide Past Performance Questionnaires (Attachment L-4) appears to only be applicable to the Offeror and not Teaming Subcontractors. Please verify that Teaming Subcontractors are not required to provide Past Performance Questionnaires for their contracts provided in response to paragraph L.14(c) for which no contractor performance data is available in the Contractor Performance Assessment Reporting System (CPARS).

	N
	The RFP provision L-14(h) requirement to provide past performance questionnaires is applicable to those contracts described in RFP provision L-14(a) for which no contractor performance data is available in CPARS. RFP provision L-14(a) requires contracts information from the prime offeror, to include teaming arrangement members, and teaming subcontractors. 

	256
	L.15 Price Proposal 
	262
	Please confirm that no additional pricing detail is required for the FFP CLINs other than the single price for each of CLINs 0001, 0101,0102, 0002, 0201 and 0202

	N
	Correct – no detailed pricing is required other than what is to be completed on the Attachment L-8 worksheets.

	257
	L.15(e)
	262
	L.15(e) Requires a basis for the EEOICPA CLINs 0301 and 0302. For all other CLINs are basis required to be submitted with the proposal or only five (5) days of NTP per Deliverable 35 on page 43 C.2.4.1
	N
	L.15( e) requires a basis for labor rates for C.3.11 (EEOICPA) and C.3.12 (Cyber, Computing, and IT). This is provided by completing the Labor Hour CLINS tabs in the L-8 pricing worksheet. No basis is required with the proposals for the other CLINs.


	258
	L.15 (i) Price Proposal
	264
	Please provide information for CBA employees, including a copy of the CBA, their wage schedule, average company service credit, number of grandfathered employees and a summary of their benefits. Please provide information on the number of Non-CBA grandfathered employees. 
	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2. 

Total FTEs:  69 salaried and 73 union
Total Grandfathered:  6 salaried and 57 union

In addition, see responses provided to questions related to the Attachment J-7 CBA WD section under question #183.


	259
	L.15 Proposal Preparation Instructions  
	264
	The Final RFP issued on October 13, 2020 (i) ..."For informational purposes only, historical direct labor rates for non-union employees, current staffing levels and the current Collective Bargaining Agreement can be found in the procurement website Documents Library."   

General staffing levels were provided in the Document Library; however, could DOE please provide the mix of labor categories (e.g. union, non-union, and grandfathered).  This information is needed to enable adequacy in pricing. Will DOE please provide this supplemental incumbent staffing information?

The current Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) is not in the Document Library.  Will DOE please add the current CBA to the Document Library?

	N
	The current CBA has been provided as Attachment J-7 in Amendment 2.

Total FTEs:  69 salaried and 73 union
Total Grandfathered:  6 salaried and 57 union


	260
	L.17
	268
	To account for potential weather delays with shipments during this time of year, we will need to ship our proposal two working days prior to the due date of December 1, which is Friday, November 27, the day after Thanksgiving. Would DOE please consider extending the due date by one week to better account for the Thanksgiving holiday?

	N
	Amendment 3 has extended the due date for proposals to 1600 (04:00pm) EST on Thursday, December 10, 2020. 

	261
	Attachment L-8
	288
	Under tabs Base IDIQ CLIN and Option IDIQ CLIN, labor hours and timeframes are identical. Considering the option is set at 24 months, should the Option IDIQ CLIN be adjusted to reflect the 24 months instead of 36 months as shown on Line 18 for example? 

	N
	The quantities are not significant other than to assist as a basis for the unit rate. The unit rates become part of the contract to be used for negotiating future IDIQ scope, if needed. No change will be made.

	262
	Attachment L-8
	288
	For the CLIN 0501 and 0502 IDIQ, are the lump sum for material cost for any size scope, and per occurrence, or contract term?
	N
	These lines have been removed from Attachment L-8. An updated version of Attachment L-8 has been provided in Amendment 3. 

Task Orders will include materials if required. 


	263
	Attachment L-8 Labor Hour CLINs IT
	288
	Attachment L-8 Labor Hour CLINs IT does not list any Cyber-specific labor categories.  Attachment J-8.C.3.11 has minimum qualifications for Cyber personnel and the Historical FTE Listing shows a Cyber Manager and 3 Cyber Specialists.  Are Offerors to assume no IT Cyber personnel are required for this contract or will DOE modify Attachment L-8 to include Cyber-specific positions?

	N
	The qualifications are included in the event they become necessary in the future. Attachment J-5 GFS&I Requirements indicates that the Paducah ISS Contractor provides the programmatic Cyber Security documents and plans for both Paducah and Portsmouth. The IT resources identified by labor category and hours under CLIN 0303/0304 will implement the cyber security requirements under C.3.12.1 as part of managing the IT infrastructure. (i.e. installation of software, adhering to cyber security requirements as part of managing the network systems, etc.)

Offerors should complete the Attachment L-8 as specified.


	264
	Section L, Attachment L-8
	288
	Section L, Attachment L-8 Base IDIQ and Opt 1 IDIQ pricing sheets item A504 Material Cost:  This item requires a cost for all materials to perform unpriced labor work including Level II work in excess of the limit of liability for work that cannot be identified in sufficient detail to be included in the FFP.  Will DOE provide detailed information on historical costs so that offerors can estimate this cost or provide a plug number for all offerors to use in their price proposal?  Is this LS for each TO that may be issued or for all TOs issued in the base or option period?

	N
	These lines have been removed from Attachment L-8. An updated version of Attachment L-8 has been provided in Amendment 3.

	265
	Section L, Attachment L-8
	288
	Standard hours for an FTE range between 1860 to 1920 hours, should the referenced 1800 in the RFP be considered a maximum?

	N
	1800 hours per year should be used for estimating this contract.

	266
	Section M
	289
	Would DOE consider requiring Oral presentations by all offerors as part of the evaluation process to allow us to more fully describe our technical approach to the full PWS?

	N
	DOE will not consider Oral presentations for the proposal effort under this procurement.  

	267
	M.6(a)

M.6(b)
	292

293
	Section M does not specify how an offeror’s past performance will be evaluated should they provide fewer than three contracts. If an offeror provides fewer than three contracts for evaluation, will they receive a negative evaluation or weakness based solely on the number of contracts they provide?  Please clarify how past performance will be evaluated if fewer than three contracts are provided for the offeror or fewer than two contracts are provided for team subcontractors.

	N
	An offeror will not receive a weakness or an unfavorable evaluation based solely on the number of contracts they provide. The number of contracts provided will not change the nature of how past performance is evaluated. 

In accordance with provision M-6(e), if there is no record of past performance or information is not available, this will lead to neither a favorable nor unfavorable evaluation. 

In accordance with provision M-6(h), the Government may consider past performance information from sources other than those provided by the Offeror. 



* Type. This column designates the question as either, N, for non-technical questions, or T, for technical questions.  
Page 2
